
 

Moapa Valley Town Advisory Board 
 

“We are dedicated to maintaining a rural lifestyle and rural quality of life in our valley.” 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
STEVE SISOLAK, Chair      LAWRENCE L. BROWN, III, Vice-Chair 

TOM COLLINS      CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI      LAWRENCE WEEKLY     MARY BETH SCOW     SUSAN BRAGER 
DON BURNETTE, County Manager 

 

Meeting Location:  Moapa Valley Community Center                    320 N. Moapa Valley Blvd                   Overton, NV 89040 

 

 

                                      
     

WEDNESDAY MAY 1, 2013 AT 7 P.M. 
MOAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY CENTER, OVERTON 

 

MVTAB members:  Chair Gene Houston, Vice‐Chair Michael Otero, Ann Markle, Desiree’ Temple  
MVTAB members absent:  Judy Metz, Excused 
Secretary:  Northeast Office Staff  
Town Liaison:  Janice Ridondo, District B   
Posting Locations:  Moapa Valley Community Center; Overton Post Office; Logandale Post Office; Logandale Chevron 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
   A.   Please silence all electronic devices; and take all private conversations outside the room. 
   B.   Conformance with Nevada Open Meeting Law‐ CONFIRMED 
   C.  Invocation and pledge.  Gene Houston 
   D.  Introduction of Clark County staff and guests.  Janice Ridondo, Liaison 
II. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION 
A.   Adoption of Agenda.  MOTION TO ADOPT THE AGENDA AS POSTED.  APPROVED, 3 For (Mike Otero was late) 
B.   Approval of draft minutes for March 13, 2013.  MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES. APPROVED, 3 For.   
C.   Correspondence.  None 

III. REPORTS 
A. Town Advisory Board committee reports.  None 
B. Other Standing Reports:   

1. Administrative Services:  Janice reported that the Building Department is offering an amnesty for building done without a 

permit through May 31.  She has received information from Elise regarding the issue of signs across Moapa Valley Blvd. where 
OHVs will be able to cross and wants this placed on a future agenda to formalize.  Tom Collins stated he is trying to get BLM to 
release some land so Moapa can have more parks. 

2. Parks & Recreation Services.  None 
IV. GENERAL BUSINESS 

   None  
V.   ZONING: 
A.     UC‐0149‐13 – SILVA, ALICIA DESIREE: 

USE PERMITS for the following: 1) reduced lot size; and 2) allow a large agricultural animals (horse) in conjunction with an existing 
single family dwelling on 0.2 acres in an R‐1 (Single Family Residential) Zone in the Moapa Valley Overlay District.  Generally located 
on the south side of Cox Avenue and the east side of Whitmore Street within Moapa Valley.  TC/pb/ml  (For possible action)  Gene 
disclosed he is related to the applicant so he would abstain.  Mike as the Vice‐chair will handle.  Alisha presented the information on 
the zoning item.  There is a stable, a turn out area and shade.  She asked that the Board approve the item.  Mike stated there are 
other horses  in the area.   Desiree’ asked how old the horse  is.   Alisha stated the horse  is not quite a year.   She walks her as she 
cannot yet be ridden.  She has had the horse since November 2012.  Ann asked how long she had been in the house.  Alisha stated 
she moved  in officially  in March.   When asked  if she uses any fly control products, she stated yes  including sprays.   Gary Pearson 
said he grew up on a ranch with over 1000 horses.  He believes most areas in Logandale/Overton are too small for horses and he is 
concerned about the horse.  He would also be concerned about flies based on the closeness of the houses.  Lori Houston stated that 
the horse does get exercised and so far she has seen no flies there.  Mary Coons stated she lives next door and her house is only 10‐
1/2  feet  from  the  fence.    She  says  she  cannot use her back  yard because of  the  flies.    She  asked  that  the Board not pass  the 
application.   Dorene Starita stated they drove the area and only saw horses on  larger  lots.   She doesn’t think there  is not a  lot of 
room available for a horse.  Ralph Starita said he was told you had to be 75 feet from any structure for a horse and asked what the 
Health District  designation  is.   Betty Hedger  stated  she has  2 plus  acres  and when horses moved  in  to  the  area,  she had  a  fly 
problem.  She told Alisha that the horse could be put at her house for more room as there is not enough room for a horse where it 
is.  Penny Blair stated she lives a house away from the horse.  She has a petition signed by 21 people opposing the variance.  She 
provided a picture of the area and stated the flies were bad when she was trying to take the picture.  She said she cannot enjoy her 
back yard because of the flies and feels the neighbors should not be made to suffer due to a lack of due diligence on the applicant’s 



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
STEVE SISOLAK, Chair      LAWRENCE L. BROWN, III, Vice-Chair 

TOM COLLINS      CHRIS GIUNCHIGLIANI      LAWRENCE WEEKLY     MARY BETH SCOW     SUSAN BRAGER 
DON BURNETTE, County Manager 

 

Meeting Location:  Moapa Valley Community Center                    320 N. Moapa Valley Blvd                   Overton, NV 89040 

 

part.  Tom Collins said that if you are a builder you take gross acreage into account which would be more than enough here to have 
a horse.  Billy Mildice stated the lot size is 75 x 122 and the piece on the ROW is County property.  Russ Siple said that people won’t 
stay  in  the  trailer park across  the street because of  the  flies and  the smell.   He doesn’t believe  the horse should be  there.   Ann 
Markle asked about  the  cleaning discrepancy between what  the applicant  said and what  the neighbors  said.   Alisha  stated  she 
knocked on doors and talked to neighbors about the horse and didn’t know about this petition and doesn’t understand it.  She does 
know horses cause flies and  is working on ensuring they find something that works.   She stated she had done everything the  law 
says except  lot size.   She would be willing to put up a wood fence to protect the privacy of her neighbor.   Billy Mildice asked for 
clarification of  the  turnout.   MOTION TO APPROVE THE APPLICATION WITH THE CONDITION OF A ONE YEAR REVIEW PERIOD.  
THREE FOR AND ONE ABSTENTION. 

VI. COMMUNITY CONCERNS 
A.  Street lights to be repaired.   There is a blinking light on Gubler by the Catholic Church. 

Other Community Concerns & Public Comment.   Dorene Starita said she wanted to thank the Boy Scouts for their 
quick work on the item she reported on Lyman and Frehner. 
 

   
COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

If you wish to speak on an item appearing on this agenda, public comments will be heard with each agenda item, prior to the action of the Board, after 
receiving recognition by the Board Chair. Comments will be limited to 3 minutes; the length may be extended by majority vote of the Board. If you wish 
to speak to this Board about items within its jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the General Public” 
period listed at the end of this agenda. 
 
According to Nevada’s Open Meeting Law, it is the Board’s discretion to take Public Comment during times other than during a Public Hearing or during 
the Public Comment Session.  In all other instances, a citizen may speak on any matter before the Board after receiving recognition and consent of the 
Chairman of the Board.  Public comment will be limited to three minutes.  If any member of the Board wishes to extend the length of a presentation, the 
Chairman of the Board will do this by majority vote.  If you wish to speak on a matter not listed as a public hearing or on a matter not posted on the 
Agenda, you may do so during the Public Comment Session. 
 

VII. ADJOURNMENT 
     The next regularly scheduled meeting is for 7 p.m. Wednesday, May 15, 2013 in the Moapa Valley Community Center, with a   
special call date of May 29, 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


